
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Discretionary Rate Relief Sub-Committee 

on Wednesday, 29 June 2016, at 11.00 a.m. or on the rising of 
Cabinet, whichever is the later, 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 
 
 
 

Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald Leader of the Council and Promoting South Lakeland 
Portfolio Holder 

Jonathan Brook Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

David Fletcher Environment Portfolio Holder 

  

Peter Thornton Finance Portfolio Holder (Substitute) 

 
 
 
Monday, 20 June 2016 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting.  

2  APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any, and to report any arising 
changes to membership. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on 
this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  DETERMINATION OF APPLICATIONS FOR DISCRETIONARY RATE 
RELIEF  

3 - 54 

 To consider applications for discretionary rate relief from four 
organisations. 

 

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 
 
There are no items in this Part of the agenda. 

 



South Lakeland District Council 

Discretionary Rate Relief Sub-Committee 

29
th

 June 2016 

Determination of Applications for Discretionary Rate 
Relief 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Peter Thornton– Finance Portfolio Holder 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director (Resources) 
and Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Ross McLaughlin – Revenues Officer (BIDs and 
Reliefs) 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

KEY DECISION: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Members will consider the applications listed at Appendix 2 to this report and 
determine whether Discretionary Rate Relief should be awarded in each case 
by reference to the policy guidelines for determining applications shown at 
Appendix 1 to this report. 

1.2 Reasons should be provided for cases where relief is refused. Applicants will 
be formally notified of the decision along with their rights of appeal. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the Sub-Committee:- 

(1) Refuses Discretionary Rate Relief in respect of Rydal Hall Ltd as 
their application is not in line with the Council’s policy, in that the 
organisation does not sufficiently benefit  residents of the district 
-  considering the cost that awarding relief would place on the  
Council - and its main objects are not charitable; and 

(2) Awards 20 per cent Discretionary Rate Relief to Leonard Cheshire 
Disability; Lunesdale Agricultural Society and South Lakes 
Citizens Advice Bureau as the benefits that these organisations 
bring to the residents of the district outweigh the cost of awarding 
relief. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 Discretionary Rate Relief policies were agreed by Cabinet on 28th January 
2014 (CEX/123). The relevant policy is attached to this report as Appendix 1. 

3.2 The cases in this report fall under paragraph 3 of the policy. Such cases are 
to be considered by a panel of Cabinet Members who will balance the benefits 

Page 3

Item No.5



an organisation brings to the residents of the District generally against the 
cost of awarding relief to the Council Taxpayer, and, the cost to the Council. 

3.3 Rydal Hall Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Carlisle Diocesan Board of 
Finance Ltd, which is a registered charity. Rydal Hall Ltd is not a registered 
charity. 

3.4 Rydal Hall is a conference, retreat and holiday centre. It provides 
accommodation at commercial rates and is as such in direct competition with 
other hotels in the district which provide accommodation and conference 
facilities on a commercial basis. 

3.5 Rydal Hall Ltd generates additional income from a camp site on its grounds; a 
bar and a tea shop. It also has a holiday cottage, let at commercial rates.   

3.6 Part of the property (Bishop Bulley Barn) is capable of holding, amongst other 
things, wedding receptions and Rydal Hall states this fact on its website.  

3.7 Rydal Hall Ltd states that its non-charitable work ensures that the hall as a 
whole is financially viable, though it appears from the information provided 
that the bulk of its objectives are non charitable (see Appendix 3). 

3.7 The Memorandum and Articles of Association (Appendix) 3 lists the 
company’s objects. The objects appear to be those of a primarily commercial 
organisation rather than a charitable one. There is no mention in the objects 
of any charitable activities. The information provided also states that Rydal 
Hall Ltd was set up ‘as a non charitable company in order to insulate the 
charitable Board of Finance from the risks associated with trading’. 

3.8 The cost of awarding relief to Rydal Hall Limited could be considerable as the 
organisation has rates payable of over £ 30,000 per year and does not 
receive Mandatory Relief. The Council would meet approximately 40 per cent 
of the cost of any award.  

3.9 The applications from Leonard Cheshire Disability; Lunesdale Agricultural 
Society and South Lakes Citizens Advice Bureau are in line with the Council’s 
policy, in that these organisations’ main objects are charitable and each 
benefits the residents of the district sufficiently when compared to the cost of 
awarding relief. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 A full public consultation exercise was undertaken prior to introduction of the 
new policies. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The alternative for Rydal Hall Ltd would be to approve the application; but this 
is not recommended for reasons already stated. 

5.2 The alternative for Leonard Cheshire Disability; Lunesdale Agricultural Society 
and South Lakes Citizens Advice Bureau would be to refuse the applications; 
but this is not recommended since that would not be in accordance with the 
Council’s policy.  

Page 4



6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The award of discretionary rate relief to charitable organisations and other 
 non-profit making organisations is to help achieve our priorities and targets 
 set out in the Council Plan.  

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1   South Lakeland District Council does not have a specific budget for 
Discretionary Rate Relief as it opted into the Cumbria Business Rates pool as 
part of the Business Rate Retention Scheme. The costs of awarding relief 
under this policy are, broadly speaking, split 50% Central Government, 40% 
South Lakeland DC and 10% Cumbria County Council and Fire Authority. 

7.1.2 Business Rates payable by Leonard Cheshire Disability, after other reliefs, 
amount to £ 409.19 for 2015/16 and £ 412.51 for 2016/17.  

7.1.3 Business Rates payable by Lunesdale Agricultural Society, after other reliefs, 
amount to £ 121.77 for 2016/17. 

7.1.4 Business Rates payable by South Lakes Citizens Advice Bureau (three 
separate accounts), after other reliefs, amount to a total of £ 21.30 for 
2015/16 and £ 253.48 for 2016/17.  

7.1.5 If the applications were approved as recommended, Discretionary Rate Relief 
of £ 1218.25 would be awarded.    

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not Applicable 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Section 47 (2) (a) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 gives the 
Council discretion to determine the chargeable amount where the ratepayer is 
a Charity or Trustees for a Charity. In effect this allows the Council to top up 
the 80% statutory relief to up to 100% relief in total. 

7.3.2 Section 47 (2) (b) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 gives the 
Council discretion to determine the chargeable amount where the property is 
occupied for the purposes of one or more institutions or other organisations 
none of which is established for profit and whose main objects are charitable 
or are otherwise philanthropic or religious or concerned with education, social 
welfare, science, literature or the fine arts.  

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

A sustainability impact assessment 
has not been carried out as these are 
individual applications. Any awards or 
refusals of applications are considered 
to have a neutral impact on 
sustainability. 

Page 5



 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

 Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

An equality and diversity impact 
assessment has not been carried out.  
as the proposals in this report are  
based on a previously agreed Council 
policy for which an assessment was 
undertaken.  

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

A decision may be 
made which does not 
comply with legislation. 

The auditor may qualify 
the final pool 
contribution and the 
Department for 
Communities and Local 
Government could 
adjust the final return 
with the costs of this 
award being met by the 
Council. 

A set of policy 
guidelines, which have 
been prepared to 
comply with legislation. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Ross McLaughlin, Revenues Officer (BIDs and Reliefs). Tel 01539 
793221 e mail- r.mclaughlin@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 GUIDELINES FOR DETERMING APPLICATIONS FOR 
DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF FROM CHARITABLE AND 

OTHER NON-PROFIT MAKING ORGANISATIONS 

2 LIST OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH 
SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS IN EACH CASE 

3 COPY OF APPLICATION AND ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS 
REGARDING RYDAL HALL LTD 

4 COPIES OF APPLICATION FOR LEONARD CHESHIRE 
DISABILITY AND LUNESDALE AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY.  

 

Page 6



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

There are no background papers to this report. 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

10/06/16  13/06/16 n/a n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a n/a n/a 10/06/16 13/06/16 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Review of Discretionary Rate Relief Policy Oct 2013  

APPENDIX 1 

GUIDELINES FOR DETERMING APPLICATIONS FOR 
DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF FROM CHARITABLE ORGANISATIONS 

 

The award of discretionary rate relief to charitable organisations and other non-profit making organisations is 
to help achieve our priorities and targets set out in the Council Plan.  

 
1.  Up to an additional 20% discretionary rate relief is to be awarded to Village Halls, Institutes and 

Community Centres registered as Charities with the Charity Commissioners. Organisations not 
so registered will be awarded up to 100% relief but are to be advised that steps should be taken 
to register as a charity.  To qualify for relief the following should apply:- 
a) the property must be described in the current Local Rating List prepared by the Listing 

Officer as either: 

i. Hall and Premises or 
ii. Institute or Village Hall and Premises, or 
iii. Community Centre and Premises, and 

b) the rateable value must be £25,000 or less, and 

c) the organisation must be administered by a Committee and employ less than 2 full 
time equivalent paid members of staff.  (Full time equivalent equals 37 hours per 
week.)  Honoraria paid to key volunteers shall be disregarded for the purposes of this 
paragraph. 

 

2.     Up to an additional 20% discretionary rate relief is to be awarded to organisations registered as 
a charity: 

 whose activities may result directly in the saving of human life or lives; or 

 who are managing and operating toilets available to the general public formerly run by 
the Council 

    

3.  In all other cases the applicant must demonstrate that the application is exceptional and such 
cases are to be considered by a panel of three Cabinet Members who will balance the benefits a 
particular organisation brings to the residents of the District generally against the cost of 
awarding relief to the Council Taxpayer and the consequences on the Council’s budget.  In 
these specific cases relief will usually be awarded for a fixed period of one year. 

 
4.  Subject to paragraph 3, relief will be granted for a maximum period of one year but the Assistant 

Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer will report to Cabinet if it is considered that there 
has been a material change in the circumstances of any organisation since the application was 
last considered. 

 

5.  Applicants are to be advised of the decision within 14 days together with their rights of appeal 
should they disagree with the decision. 

 

6.  The Assistant Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer be authorised to determine 
applications for discretionary rate relief for cases that fall within Paragraphs 1 and 2 of these 
policy guidelines, up to a maximum limit of £10,000 relief in any individual case. 

 

7.  Any appeal will be considered by a Panel of three Cabinet Members not involved in making the 
initial decision and acting as a Discretionary Rate Relief Appeals Panel. 

 
8.  Cabinet decisions delegated to a Panel of three Cabinet Members. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 2  
 Account Name Address Benefits to Community Exceptional Services Other Remarks Balance 

Payable 
Recommendation 

1 53070267 Rydal Hall 

Limited  

Rydal Hall, Rydal, Ambleside, 

Cumbria, LA22 9LX 

(1) Charitable objects of the board of 

finance are to promote and assist the 

work, purpose and objectives of the 

COE. (2) Provides venue, facilities and 

resources for activities - conferences, 

education, residential training, church 

weekends away. (3) Free access to 

garden and grounds for the public.  

 (1) Has non-charitable objects 

which make the charitable side 

financially viable. Mentions 

accommodation for private 

guests. Hosts non church 

conferences and events. 

 

£ 30319.50 
15/16 
 
£ 30565.50 
16/17 

REFUSE 

2 51732881 Leonard 

Cheshire 

Disability  

Riverview Day Centre, Beezon 

Fields Off Sandes Avenue, 

Kendal, Cumbria, LA9 6BL 

(1) Provides help to vulnerable and 

disabled people who might otherwise 

become isolated in the community. (2) 

Support disabled people into education 

and jobs, encouraging the 

development of skills. (3)  Provides 

care and support for people with 

complex needs.  

(1) Provides respite for primary 

carers, allowing people to remain 

at home and not go to a nursing 

home. (2) Offer short breaks for 

disabled people and their families.  

(1) Campaign on issues that are 

important to disabled people 

from care to transport. (2) 

Challenge ignorance and 

unfairness towards disabled 

people in society.  

£409.19 
15/16 
 
£412.51 
16/17 

ACCEPT 

3 50167481 Lunesdale 

Agricultural 

Society 

Lunesdale Agricultural Society, 

Under, Ley Park Adj Raygarth, 

Kirkby Lonsdale, Carnforth, 

Lancashire, LA6 2DX 

(1) Around 4000 people attend its 

annual agricultural show, which brings 

economic benefits to the district, 

supporting local businesses, and the 

whole of the county. (2) Foster good 

community relations by encouraging 

participation in activities allied with 

agriculture. (3) Promote improvements 

in agriculture and in the breeding of 

livestock. 

(1) There is nothing else of its 

kind in the area, the show, and 

the commitment to promote for 

the benefit of the public 

improvements in agriculture.  

(1) This application is very much 

in line with the council plan.  

£ 121.77 
 
16/17 

ACCEPT 

4 53086627 South Lakes 
Citizens Advice 
Bureau 

Room 113 1st Floor, Ulverston 
Business Centre, 25 New Market 
Street, Ulverston, LA12 7LQ 

  CHANGE OF ADDRESS FOR AN 
EXISTING APPLICATION. NEEDS 
TO BE DETERMINED AGAIN. 

£ 8.56 
15/16 
£ 101.89 
16/17 

ACCEPT 

5 53086643 South Lakes 
Citizens Advice 
Bureau 

Room 114 1st Floor, Ulverston 
Business Centre, 25 New Market 
Street, Ulverston, LA12 7LQ 

  CHANGE OF ADDRESS FOR AN 
EXISTING APPLICATION. NEEDS 
TO BE DETERMINED AGAIN. 

£ 8.56 
15/16 
£ 101.89 
16/17 

ACCEPT 

6 53086651 South Lakes 
Citizens Advice 
Bureau 

Room 115 1st Floor, Ulverston 
Business Centre, 25 New Market 
Street, Ulverston, LA12 7LQ 

  CHANGE OF ADDRESS FOR AN 
EXISTING APPLICATION. NEEDS 
TO BE DETERMINED AGAIN. 

£ 4.18 
15/16 
£ 49.70 
16/17 

ACCEPT 

       Total   

       £ 1218.25  

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



Page 13

Adam
Typewritten Text
Appendix 3.



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Page 51

Adam_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4.



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54


	Agenda
	5 Determination of Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief
	Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief - Appendix 1
	Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief - Appendix 2
	Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief - Appendix 3
	Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief - Appendix 4




